
Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services 
  
 Agenda 
 
 

 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
Please silence your phone during the meeting. 

 

1 
 

PR&CS Administration 
1401 Recreation Way 

Colorado Springs, CO 80905 

Thursday, August 13, 2015            7:30am            Palmer Room 
 

 
Call to Order   
 
Citizen Discussion 
Time for any individual to bring before the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board any matter of interest 
they wish to discuss that is not elsewhere on the agenda.  Comments are restricted to three (3) minutes; 
you will hear an alarm when your time is up.  Please contact PR&CS staff no later than the last 
Wednesday of the month prior if you wish to place a longer presentation on the agenda.     
 
Approval of Minutes-July 9, 2015 
Minutes are posted no later than 5:00pm on the Tuesday before the meeting at: 
http://parks.coloradosprings.gov/explore-play/get-involved/boards-committees/parks-and-recreation-
advisory-board    
 
Ceremonial Items  
None 

 
Action Items 

1. Bankers Loop at Goose Gossage Park/Pikes Peak Greenway             David Deitemeyer         
2. Flying Horse Master Plan                            Chris Lieber  

 
Presentations 

3. War Dog Memorial (10:00am – Time Certain)            Chris Lieber 
4. Pikes Peak Summit Complex Update                         Jack Glavan 

 
Staff Reports 

5. Ballot Measures                 Karen Palus 
6. Budget Update                Karen Palus 
7. City Code Update               Chris Lieber 
8. Project Updates: Creekside, FEMA Repairs, Incline, Venezia, Popcycle Bridge        Chris Lieber 
9. Update on Locomotive 168       Matt Mayberry 

 
Board Business 

10. Appointment of a Board Representative for the Pikes Peak Summit Complex Project 
 
Adjournment 
 

Luncheon for outgoing Parks Advisory Board and TOPS Working Committee members  
to follow at Red Rock Canyon Open Space. 

http://parks.coloradosprings.gov/explore-play/get-involved/boards-committees/parks-and-recreation-advisory-board
http://parks.coloradosprings.gov/explore-play/get-involved/boards-committees/parks-and-recreation-advisory-board


COLORADO SPRINGS PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: August 13, 2015 
 
Item Number: Action - Item #1 
 
Item Name:        Bankers Mountain Bike Loop at Goose Gossage Park (“Bankers Loop North”) 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Parks Department has received a request from individuals in the community, known as the 
Urban Single Track Project, to expand upon the existing Bankers Loop Project to provide additional 
urban mountain bike experiences.  The group has identified property adjacent to Goose Gossage 
Park, along the Pikes Peak Greenway Trail and the Dirt Jump Park as a potential location.   
 
In 2013, the Parks Department began partnering with the community to create a network of 
mountain bike trail loops along the Pikes Peak Greenway in and around the downtown area. The 
result of these efforts was the development of a pilot project, located along the Pikes Peak 
Greenway, near the Tejon Wetlands.  The Bankers Loop Pilot Project has proven successful based 
upon the amount of use, the diligence of the adopters in keeping the area clean and pruned, and a 
general decrease in the number of transient camps and other illegal activities in the area. 
 
The larger vision for the Bankers Loop is to provide multiple opportunities along the Pikes Peak 
Greenway for a cyclist (or a runner) to deviate from the pavement and travel on many miles of 
natural surface trails. A trail loop network is envisioned to use existing underutilized public property 
to achieve recreational infill. The recreational infill establishes the goal of further developing the 
multi-use aspects of our parks without the need to purchase and acquire new properties.   
 
In order to limit the amount of disturbance to the area, these projects seek to utilize the plethora of 
existing social trails that are braided throughout the Greenway. Initial project goals identified 
establishing the trail network through a concept called “Rake and Ride.” Existing key social trails 
would be identified as the preferred route then the trail is raked clear and ready to ride. Non-
preferred social trails would then be closed. The project continues to spark enthusiasm and build 
support of several community members, groups and businesses. 
 
CURRENT STATUS: 
The proposed location of the Bankers Loop “North” is along the Pikes Peak Greenway Trail, 
adjacent to the Goose Gossage Sports Complex.  Urban Single Track Project is requesting 
approval to move forward with this second phase of the project.  The group has committed to the 
development and maintenance of the trails and to continue to promote the larger vision. There are 
no associated costs to the Parks Department. The trails will be developed, constructed and 
maintained by volunteers. In the event the project is not successful, the work to officially close the 
trails would be minimal.      
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is seeking approval from the Board to initiate the Bankers Loop at Gossage Park 
 
ACTION NEEDED BY THE BOARD: 
Approval of the Bankers Loop at Gossage Park  
 
PARTIES NOTIFIED OF THIS MEETING: 
Trails and Open Space Coalition 
Jon Severson, Urban Single Track Project 





 
COLORADO SPRINGS PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: August 5, 2015 
 
Item Number: Action - Item #2 

 
Item Name: Request on Behalf of Pulpit Rock Investments, LLC to Approve the 

Proposed Flying Horse Master Plan Amendment  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The City has received a request by NES, Inc. on behalf of Pulpit Rock Investments, LLC 
(Developer) for approval of a major amendment to the Flying Horse Master Plan. The 
amendment will eliminate a 25 acre Community Park and replace the land use with 23 acres of 
residential development at 2 – 3.5 dwelling units per acre, a new pocket park and a number of 
new trail connections. The property is 25 acres zoned A (Agricultural) and is located north of 
New Life Drive and west of the future Powers Boulevard. 
 
The Flying Horse Master Plan was originally approved in 2004 and has been amended twelve 
times, including minor adjustments to park, open space, and trail corridors.  The area identified 
as a “future community park” on the current Flying Horse Master Plan is privately owned by the 
Developer.  The future community park site has not been dedicated to the City; therefore, the 
City does not have an ownership interest in the existing park site.  The Flying Horse Annexation 
Agreement and District Service Plan require dedication of parkland.  The Service plan stipulates 
that neighborhood parks within the District will be designed, constructed and maintained by the 
District.  The Service Plan stipulates that the future community park will be designed, 
constructed and maintained by the City.   
 
The Flying Horse Master Plan Amendment is being administered through the City’s Land Use 
Review Department.  A public meeting was held at the Flying Horse Club House on June 9, 
2015.  The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will consider the proposed Master Plan 
Amendment on August 13, 2015.  This item is expected to be considered by Planning 
Commission on September 17, 2015.  City Council will consider the proposed Master Plan 
Amendment at a date to be determined.  
 
In accordance with Colorado Springs City Code, 4.1.105, the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board “shall coordinate its work with that of the Colorado Springs Planning Commission so that 
both shall be working for the accomplishment of the same general purposes with reference to 
park, trail, open space and recreation development…” (Ord. 1757; 1968 Code §1-159; Ord. 88-
265; Ord. 97-99; Ord. 01-42)” 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS:  
Pulpit Rock Investments has submitted to the Planning and Community Development 
Department a Major Master Plan Amendment for Flying Horse.  The current Flying Horse 
Master Plan identifies a 25-acre community park site located at the southern end of the 
development, along Black Squirrel Creek.  The Master Plan Amendment proposes the following 



changes to park, open space and trail related facilities:  eliminate the community park, provide a 
pocket park, provide additional trail connections and provide a funding mechanism for a 
pedestrian bridge.  
 
Cumulative amendments to the Flying Horse Master Plan have resulted in a significant overall 
decrease in density and number of residential units.  The original Flying Horse Master Plan 
included 3,975 residential units.  The proposed Master Plan Amendment is based upon 2,304 
units, a 42% reduction.  To date, 1,364 residential units have been platted/constructed and 928 
future units are projected.  Three neighborhood parks (Barefoot Park, Frog’s Leap Park, and 
Angel Mist Park) have been built and are maintained by the District.  A fourth neighborhood 
park, Lizard Leap Park, will be constructed and maintained by the District in the near future. 
 
In accordance with the Parkland Dedication Ordinance, the amount of parkland required within a 
development is determined by the number of residential units.  Based upon the number of 
existing and proposed residential units proposed for Flying Horse, the developer is required to 
provide 50.02 acres of parkland.  The Master Plan amendment identifies 107 acres of land 
dedication, consisting of 27 acres of developed parkland and trails (active recreation), and 80 
acres of open space (passive recreation).  The proposed Master Plan Amendment is based 
upon active areas receiving full credit (27 acres) and the passive recreation areas 
receiving 30% credit (equates to 24 acres), for a total land dedication of 51 acres – 
fulfilling the parkland dedication requirement.           
 
To provide some recreational opportunities in the absence of the community park site, the plan 
includes additional development of the Black Squirrel Creek Trail (in accordance with the Park 
System Master Plan), the additional development of interior trails to link the Black Squirrel 
Creek Open Space with Lizard Leap Neighborhood Park and the La Foret Trail, the additional 
development of a pocket park, and a mechanism to generate funding to construct a pedestrian 
bridge over Black Squirrel Creek (each residential unit proposed within the former community 
park site will contribute $200 per unit at time of platting). 
 
The 2014 Park System Master Plan identifies the need for a community park site in the northern 
reaches of Colorado Springs as determined by projected population growth and service radius 
standards.  The Parks System Master Plan provides a framework for decision making for 
planning community parks throughout the City.  In accordance with the current Parks System 
Master Plan:  

“Colorado Springs’ community parks are generally 25 to 100 acres in size and are 
intended to serve several neighborhoods as well as community-wide needs. Community 
parks provide active recreational facilities such as athletic fields, community recreation 
buildings and/or other special features that cannot be easily accommodated in 
neighborhood parks. In addition to highly developed sports facilities, community parks 
typically provide large areas for open play, walking, and other non-programmed uses. 

 
The Park System Master Plan identified the following standards for community park sites: 

Community Park Purpose/Function:  Community parks should serve as a focal point for 
community wide activities and provide facilities that are less appropriate for neighborhood 
parks due to noise, lights, traffic, etc…  Often opportunities exist to reserve large group 
picnic areas.  Should maintain a balance between programmed sports facilities and other 
community activities such as gardens, plazas, etc… 
 
Community Park Site Characteristics:  Sports and facilities and other athletically 
programmed areas should be limited to a maximum of 50% of the total park area, 



including parking.  Portions of the site should have gentle sloping topography to 
accommodate active sports fields and open turf areas for passive recreation 
 
Community Park Service Area/Access:  Community parks should have a 2.0 mile service 
radius; parkland standard of 3 acres/1000 people, good access from an arterial street and 
direct access to regional trail system. 

 
Status of current community park ownership throughout the City:  The City currently owns 
and maintains seven developed community parks:  America the Beautiful Park, Cottonwood 
Creek Park, Memorial Park, Monument Valley Park, Quail Lake Park, and Rampart Park.  In 
addition, City owns and maintains two partially developed community parks: Coleman Park and 
Wilson Ranch Park.  The City currently owns one community park site that is under construction 
(Venezia) and two undeveloped community park (Indigo Ranch and Skyview) One additional 
undeveloped community park site is to be owned, constructed and maintained by a special 
district (Banning Lewis Ranch Community Park).  Three future community park sites are 
identified within existing development master plans including:  Wolf Ranch Master Plan, Flying 
Horse Master Plan and Indigo Ranch.  These three community park sites are not owned by the 
City but are planned to be dedicated to the City in the future.  (See attached chart for additional 
information). 
 
COMMUNITY PARKS: Status Date Acquired Acreage 
America the Beautiful Park Developed 2003 16.90 
Coleman, Norman Park Par.developed 1995 54.01 
Cottonwood Creek Park Developed 1985 77.13 
Flying Horse Park Proposed * 20.94 
Indigo Ranch Park Proposed 2013 15.26 
Memorial Park Developed 1912 196.07 
Monument Valley Park Developed 1907 153.33 
Quail Lake Park Developed 1974 113.02 
Rampart Park Developed 1984 78.44 
Sky View Park Undeveloped 2005 20.36 
Venezia, John Park Under Const. 2006 29.51 
Wilson Ranch Park Developed 1997 11.44 
Wolf Ranch Park Proposed * 26.31 

 
*Indicates Master Planned Community parks not owned by the City 
 
Status of City park development:  The City has a backlog of park development needs.  
Development costs for community parks typically range from $200,000-$300,000 per acre, 
suggesting a total estimated cost of $27-$41 million to complete the current list of community 
parks.  Development of these community park sites is subject to the availability of capital 
funding for park construction and availability of ongoing maintenance funding.  Venezia 
Community Park is currently under construction.   
 
In addition, the City owns two sports complex sites that are not yet developed (Ochs Sports 
Complex and Tutt Sports Complex) with a combined estimated construction cost in excess of 
$20 million. 
 
SPORTS COMPLEXES: Status Date Acquired Acreage 
El Pomar Youth Sports Complex Developed 1999 57.40 
Gossage Youth Sports Complex Developed 1992 36.85 



Ochs, Lawrence Sports Complex Undeveloped 2003 60.32 
Sky View Adult Softball Complex Developed 1990 40.95 
Tutt Sports Complex Undeveloped 2000 22.20 
Young, Leon Youth Complex Developed 1986 24.89 

 
Public Process: 
The public input process for this proposed Master Plan Amendment is being administered 
through the City’s Land Use Review Department.  A public meeting was held within Flying 
Horse at the Flying Horse Club House on June 9, 2015.  Post cards were sent to addresses 
within 1,000 ft. of the community park site.  The site was posted with signs identifying the 
proposed Master Plan Amendment with meeting dates and locations.  The Land Use Review 
Department has been receiving comments from the neighborhood and surrounding community.  
(See attached.)   
 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will consider the proposed Master Plan Amendment 
on August 13, 2015.  The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board meeting provides an 
opportunity for public comment.  Post cards have been sent to addresses within 1,000 ft. of this 
community park site inviting participation at the Parks Board meeting.  The existing community 
park site has been posted in advance of the Board meeting.  
 
This item is expected to be considered by Planning Commission on September 17, 2015.  It is 
anticipated that City Council will consider the proposed Master Plan Amendment after the 
Planning Commission meeting at a date to be determined.  The Planning Commission Meeting 
and City Council Meeting provide additional opportunities for public comment. 

 
Staff has received numerous comments regarding the proposed Master Plan Amendment.  All 
comments received to date are attached for the Board’s review.  
 
The current Flying Horse Community Park site offers a number of unique attributes, including 
but not limited to, superlative views of the Front Range, proximity to open space and trails, and 
good pedestrian/bike access to surrounding neighborhoods.  The site also poses challenges for 
future community park development including steep topography, proximity to residences, and 
vehicular access.  If the proposed Flying Horse Master Plan Amendment is approved and the 
current community park site eliminated, staff recommends that opportunities be pursued in the 
future to secure a suitable community park site to serve residents in the far northern reaches of 
Colorado Springs in accordance with the Park System Master Plan.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff has reviewed the proposed Flying Horse Master Plan Amendment and recommends 
approval. 
 
ACTION NEEDED BY THE BOARD:  
A motion to approve the Flying Horse Master Plan Amendment as presented.  
 
PARTIES NOTIFIED OF THIS MEETING: 
Meggan Herrington, City Development Review 
Drew, Balsick, Pulpit Rock Investments, LLC 
Tim Seibert, NES, Inc. 
Public Notification – Post Card Mailing and Sign Posting 
 



Project Statement 

Flying Horse Master Plan Amendment 

May 2015 
Revised July 30, 2015 

This Amendment to the Flying Horse Master Plan addresses the Park component of the Plan.  

The proposed change to the Master Plan will remove the 25 acre Community Park located 

adjacent to Black Squirrel Creek in the southwest portion of the Master Plan.  This site is 

constrained by topography, which could have been overcome if access to the site had been 

provided by the adjacent subdivision to the west.  The site is bisected by a significant grade 

change which combined with restricted access available only from the south, yields an inferior 

site for a community park.   

The Flying Horse Master Plan was originally planned for 3975 residential units.  Current plans 

reduce this number to approximately 2304 units for a reduction of 42%.  For those 

neighborhoods that have final subdivision plats, the actual units platted is illustrated in a box on 

the plan.  The southern portion of the master plan has undergone the most modifications.  The 

10 acre neighborhood park site is oriented and sized to match the recently approved park site 

master plan.  Road connections and land use areas have also been updated for Parcels 3 and 4 

to reflect the current intent for the area.  Clearly defined trail connections are illustrated for the 

La Foret and Black Squirrel Creek Trails.  The density for Parcel 10, immediately south of the 

Deer Creek neighborhood, has been reduced from 115 planned units to 45 units. The multi‐

family parcel 13 has increased slightly in acreage but the planned 250 units remain the same.  

CDOT purchased parcel 14 and it will remain open space. 

The 25 acres previously planned for a community park (parcel 28) will be changed to residential 

use on the Master Plan.  This land is separated from a neighborhood park by the Black Squirrel 

Creek open space and drainage.  A trail from the Black Squirrel open space to Lizard Leap Park 

has been shown in a conceptual location (pending subdivision design) on the Master Plan.  To 

access this park from the former community park site, a bridge over Black Squirrel Creek will be 

required.  Flying Horse proposes to pay park fees for each unit platted on the former 

community park site.  The fee will be augmented by an additional $200/unit.  The park fees and 

the additional fee are to be used by the City to build a bridge over Black Squirrel Creek.   

Neighborhood Parks and trails will continue to be provided within the Flying Horse Master Plan 

by the Flying Horse Metropolitan District.  Three Neighborhood parks have been constructed 

(Barefoot Park, Angels Mist Park and Frogs Leap Park), and the fourth (Lizard Leap Park) is in the 

planning/design stage with the park master plan approved by the Parks Advisory Board in 

clieber
Typewritten Text
Provided by NES, Inc.



March 2015.  Neighborhood parks are designed, constructed, and maintained by a 

Metropolitan District.  With this proposed amendment, the Black Squirrel Creek drainage 

continues to include open space and trail corridor for a branch of the La Foret Trail and Black 

Squirrel Creek Trail.  Along this trail the developer will place recreational amenities which may 

include benches, pocket parks, picnic tables and similar amenities.  These amenities will be 

maintained by adjacent HOA’s.  The northern branch of the La Foret Trail is also being 

implemented as an urban trail.   

Flying Horse is unique in that membership to the Fitness Center is included with all lot sales.  

The Fitness Center has tennis, swimming, spa, indoor gym, and fitness rooms among its 

facilities.  The Fitness Center provides many Community Park functions including classes.  The 

Golf Club, while private, provides open space to offset the density of adjacent properties.   

 



Flying Horse Master Plan
Proposed Amendment #13 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
August 13, 2015



Regional Context

Master Plan Amendment #13

Interquest Pkwy

Northgate Road



Current Master Plan

Master Plan Amendment #13



Proposed Master Plan

Master Plan Amendment #13



Flying Horse ‐ Southern Portion

Master Plan Amendment #13

Black Squirrel Creek

Dear Creek
Neighborhood

Wildwood at
Northgate

New Life Drive



Areas of Change

Master Plan Amendment #13

Current MP Proposed MP



Areas of Change

Master Plan Amendment #13

Current MP Proposed MP

Refined park location/size



Areas of Change

Master Plan Amendment #13

Current MP Proposed MP

Refined park location/size

Clarified road/trail connections



Areas of Change

Master Plan Amendment #13

Current MP Proposed MP

Refined park location/size

Clarified road/trail connections

CDOT open space



Areas of Change

Master Plan Amendment #13

Current MP Proposed MP

Refined park location/size

Clarified road/trail connections

CDOT open space

Reduced density



Areas of Change

Master Plan Amendment #13

Current MP Proposed MP

Refined park location/size

Clarified road/trail connections

CDOT open space

Reduced density

Removed Community Park site



Areas of Change

Master Plan Amendment #13

Current MP Proposed MP

Refined park location/size

Clarified road/trail connections

CDOT open space

Reduced density

Removed Community Park site

Slight adjustment in MF site



Parks, Trails and Open Space

Master Plan Amendment #13

Original Master Plan: 3975 du

Proposed Amendment #13 2304 du*
• 1,376 lots platted
• 928 du yet to be constructed

*Reduction of 42% from initial MP

Parkland constructed:
• Barefoot Park 5 acres
• Frog’s Leap Park 5.6 acres
• Angel Mist Park 3.75 acres

• Lizard Leap Park 10 acres
(Park MP approved 3/15)

Trails/Open Space:
• La Foret Trail
• Black Squirrel Creek Trail
• Black Squirrel OS 80 acres



Existing and Proposed 
Parks for Public Use

Lizard Leap Park

Lizard Leap Park 
10 acres
(Master Plan Approved)

Barefoot Park

5.0 acres

Angels Mist Park
3.75 acres

Frogs Leap Park
5.6 acres

All parks are built and maintained by the 
Flying Horse Metropolitan District



Barefoot Park

Master Plan Amendment #13



Angel Mist Park

Master Plan Amendment #13



Frog’s Leap Park

Master Plan Amendment #13



Lizard Leap Park

Master Plan Amendment #13

Aerial Photo



Trails and Open Space

Master Plan Amendment #13

La Foret Trail in Stone Crossing

La Foret Trail connection made 
into Flying Horse



Trails and Open Space

Master Plan Amendment #13

La Foret Trail looking into Black 
Squirrel Creek open space

La Foret Trail under Hwy 83



Parkland Requirements

Master Plan Amendment #13

Proposed Amendment #13 2304 du

Park Land Dedication required:  50.02 acres

Active Parks and Trails 
Provided/Planned: 27 acres

Open Space:
80 acres (30% credit given) 24 acres

TOTAL PARKLAND PROVIDED 
with Amendment #13: 51 acres

All units constructed in Parcel 28 (former
Community Park site) will pay applicable park
fees and an additional $200 per unit to assist in
the completion of the pedestrian bridge across
Black Squirrel Creek.



Questions / Comments

Master Plan Amendment #13

Interquest Pkwy

Northgate Road



Flying Horse 

Land Dedication Obligation 

Land Use Master Plan Amendment #13
4/23/2015  Revised 7/27/15

MASTER PLAN

Parcel # MP ACRE USE (Residential, Park, Commerial, Institutional) Density

                

AVERAGE 

DENSITY

UNITS         PER 

AVERAGE 

DENISTY

LAND 

DEDICATION 

REQUIREMENT  

(Per Average 

Density)

PROPOSED 

UNITS FROM THE 

MP #13

ACTUAL UNITS 

FROM THE MP Actual Density 

RATE:  Below 8 

DU/Acre 

Multiplier 

(.02325) 

RATE:  Above 8 

DU/Acre 

Multiplier 

(.01650)

Land Dedication 

(Per MP UNITS)

PROPOSED & 

BUILT 

PARKLAND

PROPOSED 

OPEN SPACE Change Notes

1S/W 78 Residential 2 2 156.00 3.63   34 ‐ 0.02325 0.79 * MP vs. NES Figures

3 75 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 206.25 4.80 225 ‐ ‐ 0.02325 5.23

4 47 Residential 2.‐3.5 2.75 129.25 3.01 216 ‐ ‐ 0.02325 5.02

5A 56 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 154.00 3.58   172 ‐ 0.02325 4.00

5B 42 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 115.50 2.69   57 ‐ 0.02325 1.33

6‐32 25 Residential 0‐1.99 0.99 24.75 0.58 ‐ 71 2.84 0.02325 1.65

6‐32 33 Residential 0‐1.99 0.99 32.67 0.76 ‐ 53 1.61 0.02325 1.23

6‐32 31 Residential 0‐1.99 0.99 30.69 0.71 ‐ 59 1.90 0.02325 1.37

6‐32 49 Residential 0‐1.99 0.99 48.51 1.13 ‐ 51 1.04 0.02325 1.19

7 71 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 195.25 4.54 ‐ 132 ‐ 0.02325 3.07

8 54 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 148.50 3.45   122 ‐ 0.02325 2.84

9 82 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 225.50 5.24 ‐ 188 2.29 0.02325 4.37

10 19 Residential 3.5‐8 7.5 142.50 3.31 45 ‐ 0.02325 1.05

12A 24 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 66.00 1.53 ‐ 69 2.88 0.02325 1.60

12B 19 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 52.25 1.21 ‐ 74 3.89 0.02325 1.72

13 14 Multi Family Residential 12‐20.0 16 224.00 3.70 250 ‐ ‐ 0.0165 4.13

14 7 Multi Family Residential SOLD TO CDOT 12‐20.0 16 112.00 SOLD   ‐ ‐ 0.0165 0.00 ‐7 acres ‐ SOLD

16 9 Residential 3.5‐8.0 5.75 51.75 1.20 12 0.02325 0.28

17 46 Commercial 0.00

18 9 Office 0.00

20 (A/B/C) 14? Commercial 0.00

21 14.5? Commercial  0.00

22 26 Office 0.00

22A 5 Commercial 0.00

23 62 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 170.50 3.96 100 0.02325 2.33

23A 3 Neighborhood Park 0.00 2.00  ‐ 3 Acre Park /+(2) 1 ac

24 18.5 Public Institutional 0.00

25 55.5 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 152.63 3.55   106 0.02325 2.46

26 68 Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 187.00 4.35 148 2.18 0.02325 3.44

26A 6 Neighborhood Park 0.00 6.00

27 80 School Site 0.00

28 25 Community Park/Residential 2‐3.5 2.75 68.75 1.60 80 0.00 0.02325 0.00 ‐25 Acre park/Add Res

29 37 OPEN SPACE 0.00 37.00

29 43 OPEN SPACE 0.00 43.00

30 194 Golf Course (includes a maint yard) 0.00

31 20 Private Club & Fitness Center 0.00

33 10 Neighborhood (10 Acre Site) 0.00 10.00

34 5 Neighborhood Park (in Parcel 9 ‐ BUILT) 0.00 5.00

35 4 Neighborhood Park (in 6/32 ‐ Not sure if built) 0.00 4.00

36 11 Residential 3.5‐8.0 5.75 63.25 1.47   40 0.02325 0.93

0.3 Public Institutional 0.00

3.0 Public Institutional 0.00

928 1376 30% of 80 is 24 Acre

+ 24 acre OS

51.00

80.002757.50
2304

60.00 50.02 27.00



 
 

July 28, 2015 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE  
The City of Colorado Springs Parks Advisory Board will hear the request by Pulpit Rock Investments, LLC to eliminate the 
Community Park site as designated by the Flying Horse Master Plan as follows: 
 
FILE NO.: CPC MP 06-00219-A5MJ15 –  A request by NES, Inc. on behalf of Pulpit Rock Investments, LLC for approval of 
a major amendment to the Flying Horse Master Plan. The amendment will eliminate a 25 acres Community Park and replace 
the land use with 23 acres of residential development at 2 – 3.5 dwelling units per acre, a new pocket park and a number of 
new trail connections. The property is 25 acres zoned A (Agricultural) and is located North of New Life Drive and west of 
Future Powers Boulevard. 

 

The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will hold a Public Hearing on August 13, 2015, at the 
Parks and Recreation Headquarters Building, 1401 Recreation Way, Colorado Springs, CO  80905. 

The meeting begins at 7:30 a.m., and continues until all items on the agenda have been heard. 

 
To view this application and related documents, please visit www.springsgov.com, please select “Land Use Review” from the Departments 
drop down list, and click on “LDRS-Plan Search.” Type the entire file number (i.e.), CPC MP 06-00219-A5MJ15 within the “Enter the File 
Number” field and click on the “Run Query” button. You can view PDF documents by clicking on the links that appear on the left-hand side of 
the resulting page. Please contact Cindy Hurst at 719-385-5351 for assistance viewing this application. 
 

Reviewing Planner: 
Meggan Herington 
(719) 385-5083 
mherington@springsgov.com 

Plans can be reviewed at: 
30 S. Nevada, Suite 105 

Colorado Springs, CO 
719-385-5905 

Hours of Operation: 
Monday – Friday 

8am-5pm 
 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
Land Use Review 

http://www.springsgov.com/










































COLORADO SPRINGS PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: August 13, 2015 
 
Item Number: Presentation - Item #3 
 
Item Name: War Dog Memorial Concept 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Memorial Park Master Plan identifies specific areas for the development of future memorials 
within Memorial Park.  The City of Colorado Springs Parks, Recreation & Cultural Services 
Department has received a request from the War Dog Memorial Project to erect a memorial in 
Memorial Park in honor of the service and dedication of war dogs, past, present and future who 
have served our troops at home and abroad.  The War Dog memorial is intended to be a place to 
honor war dogs and a place for reflection, celebration and thanks for the many people whose lives 
have been touched by the commitment of these service dogs.   
 
CURRENT STATUS: 
 
The War Dog Memorial Project team is currently refining the design of their memorial and 
embarking on a fundraising campaign for the proposed memorial in Memorial Park. At this time, the 
War Dog Memorial Team is seeking the Board’s consent to erect a memorial in Memorial Park 
within the War Memorial Ring of Honor.  With the Board’s consent, the team will present their 
proposed design to the Public Arts Commision for preliminary approval and input on final design of 
the monument.  Once the design is finalized and fundraising is nearing completion, the War Dog 
Memorial Project team will return to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board for final approval of 
the project. 
 
Parks Department staff has worked with the War Dog Memorial team to identify a suitable location 
within the Circle of Honor at Memorial Park for their proposal.  The monument proposal has been 
designed with this location in mind. The plan of the proposed memorial is attached to this packet 
and will be located at plot 27.  The memorial will include a statue, low walls adjacent to the statue 
with inlayed plaques that will show war dogs in action and provide education as to their role, as 
well as a walkway to access the memorial.   
 
The War Dog Memorial team will be responsible for all costs associated with creating and erecting 
the memorial.  Maintenance of the memorial including and repairs stemming from vandalism, theft, 
weather or other acts or events shall be covered by a stewardship endowment provided by the War 
Dog Memorial team. 
 
Establishing a location for the memorial is important as War Dog Memorial team engages in a 
fundraising campaign and finalizes the design.  The success of this fundraising along with the time 
required to obtain final approval from the Public Arts Commission and the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board once that fundraising has been successfully completed will dictate the timeline for 
this project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A  Presentation Item Only 
 
ACTION NEEDED BY THE BOARD: 



N/A  Presentation Item Only 
 
PARTIES NOTIFIED OF THIS MEETING: 
 
Wade and Ruby Ridpath, War Dog Memorial Project  



 

ABOUT US 

 
Wade Ridpath: Vietnam Veteran - Served for 12 years in the United States Navy 
   Associates Degree in Science from National College, Rapid City, SD 
   Past Instructor for the Dale Carnegie Course 
   Self Employed as a Hair Designer for 39 years 
    
Ruby Ridpath: 31 years in Banking, Mortgage Lending & Real Estate 
   Currently Office Manager/Administrator and Bookkeeper with a nationally   
      franchised Real Estate company for 20 years. 
    
   Member of the United States War Dogs Association 
   Volunteer with Mission K9 Rescue – 2013 to Present 
   Board Member with the Colorado Wolf & Wildlife Center - June 2002 to Present 
       
In November, 2011, we adopted CWD Carlos, a retired Explosive Detection Dog that had served for 5 
continuous years in Iraq and Afghanistan.  His adoption changed our lives.  Educating the public about 
War Dogs, as both MWDs and CWDs are collectively called, became a passion and has brought us to 
where we are today.  We have given presentations about War Dogs at numerous venues including 
Expos, Civic Organizations and Elementary Schools along the front range of Colorado since 2012. 
 
In August 2013, we were honored to adopt Military Working Dog Alik H218, a retired Patrol/Explosive 
Detector Dog that served for 8 years with the USAF Security Forces.   Recently, on April 22, 2015, we 
adopted CWD Boss, a retired Mine Detection Dog that served his entire life in Kuwait. 
 
In 2013, through an extensive social media campaign, CWD Carlos was voted the Military Hero Dog of 
2013 which has allowed us to reach more of the public about the selfless sacrifice and service of war 
dogs both past and present. 
 
Ruby has traveled coast to coast (Los Angeles, Dallas, Washington DC & New York City) with CWD 
Carlos and MWD Alik educating people about our nation’s working dog heroes. 
 ●  In 2013, Ruby had the privilege to travel to Washington DC with CWD Carlos and speak at a  
  Congressional Briefing on Capitol Hill on behalf of our nation’s working dog heroes. 
 
 ●  In 2014, Ruby traveled to New York City with MWD Alik where they represented and   
  honored War Dogs in the Veterans Day Parade. 
 
We believe the over 4,000 dogs that were either euthanized or left behind in Vietnam deserve to be 
honored and remembered.  We believe that the dogs that have given their lives willingly and selflessly 
deserve to be honored.  We believe the dogs that have sustained injury and suffer from Canine PTSD 
deserve to be honored.  We believe all War Dogs have earned and deserve to be revered forever. 
 
We are dedicated to building the War Dog Memorial that will honor the dogs that have served and 
continue to serve protecting our troops, country and freedoms both domestically and overseas.   
 
Wade & Ruby Ridpath 
 
War Dog Memorial       Ph.  719-470-0936           Find Us On Facebook 
PO Box 25822, Colo Springs, CO   80936     Email:  wardogmemorialco@gmail.com         FB.com/wardogmemorialco 

The War Dog Memorial Project is a component fund of the Pikes Peak Community Foundation, a 501(c)3 organization. 
Contributions are tax deductible to the extent allowed by law. 

mailto:wardogmemorialco@gmail.com


















COLORADO SPRINGS PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: August 13, 2015 
 
Item Number: Presentation - Item #4 
 
Item Name:        Pikes Peak Summit Complex Update 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Pikes Peak is one of the principal landmarks in the western United States. The mountain is 
contained within the Pike National Forest and was first mapped by Zebulon Montgomery Pike in 
1806. By 1859, Pikes Peak was the symbol for western expansion brought about by the gold rush. 
Ambitious prospectors crying “Pikes Peak or Bust” fueled a regional population boom into the late 
1800s.  
 
In 1889, a toll road was built to accommodate the horse drawn carriages which traveled the 
mountain on a regular basis. The winding road to the 14,110 summit quickly became well-known 
across the country for its incredible views of the eastern plains of Colorado and the surrounding 
peaks of the Rocky Mountains. Not surprisingly, Katherine Lee Bates penned “America the 
Beautiful” after a trip to the summit of Pikes Peak. 
 
Visitors have ascended the road via automobile for nearly 100 years, and maintenance of the road 
has been problematic for almost as long. The first auto road was constructed in 1915 and was 
operated as a private enterprise until 1935 when it was relinquished back to the U.S. government. 
Because the United States Forest Service (USFS) could not afford to maintain the road, it was 
added to the State’s highway system and maintenance was funded by a gas tax. In 1947, an 
amendment to the state gas tax statute cut the availability of funds for the Pikes Peak Highway and 
in 1948, maintenance of the road ceased. Both the City and the USFS recognized the importance 
of the Pikes Peak Highway as a tourist attraction and an economic driver, but neither the City nor 
the USFS had sufficient funding to operate and maintain the road. At that time federal regulations 
prohibited toll roads on USFS lands; however, in 1948, the City was granted a special use permit 
by the USFS which allowed the road to reopen as a toll road.   
 
Each year approximately 120,000 vehicles carrying over 300,000 visitors travel the Pikes Peak 
Highway which is paved to the summit and extends through Pike National Forest from Cascade, 
Colorado to the summit. The highway is open year round, weather-permitting.  
 
Highlights of the Term Special Use Permit include: 
 

• Issued by the United States Forest Service (USFS) 
• Term refers to the fact the Permit is time-limited. In this case, the permit is good for thirty 

years, from 1990 through 2020 
• First issued by USFS in 1948 
• The USFS has final approval authority for all construction projects 
• Highway and all structures are owned by the United States under the administration of the 

USFS (except for the Maintenance Garage and the Crystal Reservoir Visitors Center) 
• Permit is not transferable; holder may sublease use of land, concessions, etc. 
• All income derived from permitted activities must be used for funding the Operating Plan 

and budget of Pikes Peak-America’s Mountain.   
 



Pikes Peak-America’s Mountain is an enterprise of the City of Colorado Springs. The enterprise 
operates the Pikes Peak Highway and the associated visitor’s facilities (Summit House, Glen Cove 
Inn and Crystal Reservoir Gift Shop) as well as the recreational corridor (hiking, picnic grounds, 
and interpretive trail) according to the Term Special Use Permit issued by the U.S. Forest Service. 
Revenue is generated from Gateway revenue and concessionaire fees.  This revenue is used to 
provide visitor and Ranger services, highway and facility maintenance, construction, interpretive 
and educational services and special project funding such as the Pikes Peak Summit Project. 
 
CURRENT STATUS: 
The new Summit Visitor Center should provide a quality visitor experience that demonstrates the 
significance of and a sensitivity of Pikes Peak – America’s Mountain. The design should be 
mindful of the attraction that it serves, social need and reflective of the setting. The completion of 
this project should restore the summit to its natural settings and preserve the visitor experience.  
 
The current summit house was built in the 1960's and there are three additional support facilities 
on the summit of Pikes Peak including a utility building (Plant) to support the summit house, a 
communications building operated by the Colorado Springs Utilities (CSU) and a building 
operated by the United States Army Research Institute of Environmental Medicine (USARIEM).  
All buildings have exceeded their useful life and need to be replaced. 
 
The USFS approved the project in 2014 and the stakeholders have worked together to begin the 
Environmental Assessment process and the Design process. In 2015, the City of Colorado 
Springs solicited and awarded a contract to EDM International to facilitate the environmental 
process and awarded a contract to RTA Architects for the design of the new Pikes Peak Summit 
Complex facilities. 
 
The preliminary estimated cost for this project is $20-$25 million which includes design of the entire 
complex, environmental studies needed to comply with the NEPA requirements, and the 
construction of the complex.  USARIEM will contribute $3.5 M for their portion of the project, 
including the HARL and a share of the Plant building.  CSU will provide in-kind environmental 
services in lieu of design and environmental funding, but will contribute their share for the 
construction costs associated with the communications necessary for their operation. PPAM will be 
responsible for the project costs associated with the Visitor Center and the share of the Plant 
building.   
 
Funding for PPAM costs will come from various sources including PPAM Enterprise Funds, 
donations/contributions from private sources and LART funding.  (Note:  In 2015, PPAM received 
$250,000 for design of the Summit Complex as part of a $1M request.)  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
ACTION NEEDED BY THE BOARD: 
None.  Presentation only.  
 


	Attachments for Flying Horse - Parks Board.pdf
	Project Statement 073015
	FH MP#13 Parks Board 081315 - Power Point from Tim
	Flying Horse MP - Land Dedication Re-Calculation NES 072715
	POSTCARD FLying Horse Park Board
	Public Comments - Flying Horse Master Plan Amendment

	Parks Board Packet Combined.pdf
	ABOUT US - PARKS BOARD
	FLIER - Why a War Dog Memorial
	FLIER - Details of the Memorial 6-20-15
	Letter Gayle Getts-Howe Vietnam
	Letter Merry Starkey Army
	Letter Rick Starkey Marine
	Letter US Marine Corp League
	Letter USWDA
	Letter WWII William Getts




